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I.
Introduction 

On September 29, 2016, the Committee on Sanitation and Solid Waste Management, chaired by Council Member Antonio Reynoso, will hold a hearing Int. No. 1268, A Local Law to amend the New York City Charter and the Administrative Code of the City of New York, in relation to regulation of the heating oil supply industry by the Business Integrity Commission.  This is the first hearing the Committee has held on this bill.
II.
Background

A.
Recent Events in the Heating Oil Industry


In 2015, the Manhattan District Attorney’s office issued indictments against 44 individuals and nine companies that are part of New York City’s heating oil industry and who were alleged to have defrauded property owners across the City of as much as ten percent of the oil that the customers believed they were receiving.  This fraud was perpetrated through a practice known as “shorting,” whereby oil delivery truck equipment was manipulated to show that oil was being delivered to a customer when in fact a portion of the oil remained in the truck and was typically later re-sold to another heating oil company at a discount.
  According to the indictments, these heating oil companies and workers bilked oil customers out of at least $34 million, although this practice was likely much more widespread.  Of 58 fuel delivery trucks seized in an investigation 48 were found to have been rigged to deprive customers of their fuel.
  
According to the Business Integrity Commission (BIC), shorting is widespread in the heating oil industry; virtually every company participates in this fraudulent activity by either defrauding customers themselves or purchasing “delivered” oil at a steep discount.  Unfortunately, this practice is not new. Fifty-five years ago, the city accused two dozen heating oil companies of pumping air instead of oil into the fuel tanks, defrauding customers of millions of dollars in excessive heating bills.  Two decades after that, investigators uncovered more than a dozen cases of overcharging for heating oil deliveries to city-owned apartment buildings.
 

B.
The Business Integrity Commission
Since the mid-1950s, New York City’s private trade waste and wholesale market industries have been subject to corruption from organized crime, which used a variety of tactics including violence to extort, control and drive out competition.  As a result, business owners were routinely overcharged and threatened and would often have to overcharge customers to stay afloat.
   One public market that was significantly impacted by organized crime was the Fulton Fish Market, which until its closure in 2005 was located in the South Street Sea Market area of Manhattan. In 1995, the Council enacted Local Law 50, which added Chapter 1A to Title 22 of the Administrative Code.  This legislation empowered the Department of Small Business Services (SBS) and the Department of Investigation (DOI) to license and to investigate the conduct of businesses and organizations operating in the Fulton Fish Market.

Because commercial waste carters were also heavily infiltrated by organized crime, in 1996 the Council enacted Local Law 42, which added Title 16-A to the Administrative Code and established the Trade Waste Commission (TWC) to regulate and license the commercial carting industry.  The law authorized the TWC to, among other things, establish standards for the issuance and revocation of licenses to businesses engaged in the collection, removal and disposal of waste in the city; to establish maximum and minimum rates for these services; and to investigate any matter within the TWC’s jurisdiction.
  The law also required TWC to investigate certain employees, including managers, of such businesses, and for these employees to be fingerprinted and to submit certain background information to TWC when hired.
  In 1997, the Council enacted Local Law 28, which added Chapter 1B to Title 22 of the Administrative Code.  This law expanded this regulatory framework to other public wholesale markets outside of the Fulton Fish Market.  Finally, in 1997 the Council also passed Local Law 57, which added Title 20-A to the Administrative Code and established the Gambling Control Commission to eliminate organized crime influence on gambling ships sailing out of New York City to international waters.  

In 2001, as part of its Charter revision, the City decided to consolidate these various entities for better efficiency and coordination.  Thus, the City Charter was amended to add Chapter 63 which established the Organized Crime Control Commission, now referred to as the Business Integrity Commission.
  The programs dealing with the public wholesale food markets at SBS and DOI, the Trade Waste Commission, and the Gambling Control Commission were consolidated into the new agency.
  

III.
Int. No. 1268
This bill provides the Business Integrity Commission (BIC) with broad powers to comprehensively regulate the heating oil supply industry.  BIC would be given authority to issue licenses and suspend and/or revoke licenses to and from heating oil industry participants. 

Section 20-1001 of the bill sets forth general guidelines for the regulation of the heating oil industry by BIC, including the establishment of rules by the agency.  
Section 20-1002 of the bill requires that the following heating oil industry participants obtain licenses from BIC:  (1) dealers (entities that sell heating oil to consumers); (2) deliverers (entities that deliver heating oil to consumers); (3) dispatchers (individuals who schedule deliveries of heating oil and route operators to consumers); and (4) operators (drivers and helpers on trucks that transport and deliver heating oil).  This section prohibits these entities and individuals from operating without a BIC-issued license; prohibits dealers from using unlicensed deliverers, dispatchers and/or operators; and prohibits deliverers from delivering oil from unlicensed dealers or using unlicensed operators to drive trucks.  It also prohibits the knowing operation of delivery vehicles that have been altered to engage in the practice of shorting, and prohibits engaging in any fraudulent business practice as defined in the bill.

Section 20-1003 of the bill requires that license terms and requirements for renewing such licenses, including applicable fees, be set forth in rules established by BIC.   
Section 20-1004 of the bill sets forth requirements for submitting licenses to BIC, including information regarding predecessor heating oil businesses, and other information established by rule.  It also sets forth criteria for what is considered a predecessor heating oil business.   The section provides for the fingerprinting of principals, employees in certain job titles and employees whom BIC reasonably believes may lack good character, honesty and integrity.   

Section 20-1005 of the bill gives BIC the authority to deny licenses where applicants have been determined to lack good character, honesty and integrity and sets forth a nonexclusive list of reasons for such denial, including failure to provide the required documentation, a pending indictment or criminal proceeding, or conviction of a crime that has a direct relationship concerning the fitness of the applicant to conduct business for which a license is being sought.  
Section 20-1006 requires applicants or licensees to notify BIC if certain events occur like a change in ownership or an arrest of a principal.  It also authorizes BIC to fingerprint an employee or agent of a licensee who is not otherwise required to be fingerprinted if the agency has reasonable cause to believe that the individual lacks good character, honesty and integrity.  It also prohibits a licensee from employing or otherwise engaging such an individual if BIC determines that he or she lacks good character, honesty and integrity.  
Section 20-1007 of the bill provides BIC with discretion to require, as a condition for a license, that a business retain an independent monitor selected or approved by BIC in the event that a background investigation produces adverse or derogatory information. 
Section 20-1008 of the bill allows BIC to revoke or suspend a license in certain instances, including when a licensee or any of its principals or employees are in violation of this law or any rules promulgated thereto; if such a licensee has been found in a court of law to engage in certain activities including meter tampering, overcharging, or shorting; or if a licensee has been found to be in persistent or substantial violation of any law concerning the transport or delivery of heating oil.  

Section 20-1009 of the bill allows BIC to temporarily suspend any license on an emergency basis in cases of imminent danger to life or property.   

Section 20-1010 of the bill sets forth penalties for violating any provision of the chapter, including a civil penalty of not more than $10,000 for each violation.  For violations of Section 20-1002, the penalties include criminal penalties of not more than $10,000 and imprisonment of not more than six months for each day of such violation, as well as an additional civil penalty of $10,000 for each violation in addition to or as an alternative to the criminal penalties. 
Section 20-1011 allows for the impoundment of vehicles used or being used in violation of Section 20-1002.  In addition, the interest of an owner of such delivery vehicle may be subject to forfeiture upon notice and judicial determination that such vehicle is found to contain stolen heating oil or that the vehicle or its equipment has been altered to engage in shorting or any other fraudulent business practice.  The section also sets for a procedure for selling such vehicles, including the promulgation of rules by BIC.

Section 20-1012 states that licensees will be liable for violations of this law or rules promulgated thereto committed by any of its employees or agents.  

Section 20-1013 states that notices of violations and appearance tickets for any violation of this law may be issued by BIC enforcement agents as well as by other authorized agents or employees of other city agencies designated by BIC.  

Section 20-1014 allows BIC to provide by rule that hearings or certain hearings pursuant to this law may be conducted by Office of Administrative Trials and Hearings.

Section 20-1015 requires all licensed dealers and deliverers to maintain audited financial statements and other written or electronic records as BIC may determine are necessary to carry out the purposes of this law, as well as to be in compliance with all applicable federal, state and local laws concerning the transport and delivery of heating oil.  In addition, all licensees are required to bill customers in a form and manner to be prescribed by BIC.  Licensed dealers or deliverers are prohibited from employing individuals required to be licensed unless they have obtained such a license, although BIC is required to, by rule, allow for the temporary employment of such individuals pending review of an application.

Section 20-1016 requires BIC to establish, by rule, a procedure for the investigation and resolution of complaints regarding overcharging and other problems relating to the delivery of heating oil.  

Section 20-1017 states that nothing in this law supercedes Section 8-107(9) concerning the protection of criminal history.
The law would take effect 180 days after enactment.
Int. No. 1268
 
By Council Member Reynoso
 
A Local Law to amend the New York city charter and the administrative code of the city of New York, in relation to regulation of the heating oil supply industry by the business integrity commission.
 
Be it enacted by the Council as follows:
 
Section 1. Subdivision a and subdivision b of section 2101 of the New York city charter, as amended by local law number 21 for the year 2002, are amended to read as follows:
a. The business integrity commission shall be responsible for the regulation of the trade waste industry, the shipboard gambling industry, the fulton fish market distribution area and other seafood distribution areas [and], the public wholesale markets, and the heating oil supply industry. In regulating such industries, areas and markets, the commission shall have the powers and duties conferred by this chapter and such other powers and duties as are conferred by law.
b. The powers and duties of the business integrity commission shall be exercised in a manner consistent with all local laws governing the regulation of the trade waste industry, the shipboard gambling industry, the fulton fish market distribution area and other seafood distribution areas [and], the public wholesale markets and the heating oil supply industry and shall include but not be limited to the following:
§ 2. Title 20-A of the administrative code of the city of New York is amended by adding a new chapter 2 to read as follows:
CHAPTER 2
REGULATION OF THE HEATING OIL SUPPLY INDUSTRY
§ 20-1000 Definitions. As used in this chapter:
Applicant. The term “applicant” means an individual or business entity submitting an application for a license or the renewal of a license pursuant to this chapter and all of the principals of such business entity.
Affiliate. The term “affiliate” means a business entity that is under common ownership with another business entity or has an interlocking board of directors with another business entity.                     
Consumer. The term “consumer” means a person who purchases heating oil at retail for use in a specific building in the city.
Commission. The term “commission” means the business integrity commission established pursuant to chapter 63 of the charter or a person delegated by such commission to act on its behalf.
Dealer license. The term “dealer license” means a license issued by the commission pursuant to this chapter to a person engaged in business as a dealer.
Deliverer license. The term “deliverer license” means a license issued by the commission pursuant to this chapter to a person engaged in business as a deliverer.                     
Dispatcher. The term “dispatcher” means an individual employed by a dealer, deliverer or terminal who schedules or dispatches deliveries of heating oil to consumers and/or communicates with the operators of delivery vehicles and/or consumers with regard to deliveries of heating oil to consumers. Such term includes an individual who supervises employees who perform such function.
Dispatcher license. The term “dispatcher license” means a license issued by the commission pursuant to this chapter to a dispatcher.
Fraudulent business practice. The term “fraudulent business practice” means, with intent to defraud a consumer, delivering a product to a consumer that differs from the type and/or quantity of heating oil that the consumer agreed to purchase. The form and content of any such agreement to purchase heating oil must be in accordance with the rules of the commission. A fraudulent business practice includes, but is not limited to, the practice of blending heating oil with additives or other ingredients before delivery to a consumer without the consumer’s knowledge and “shorting,” as such term is defined herein.
Heating oil. The term “heating oil” means oil refined for the purpose of use as fuel for combustion in a heating system.
Heating oil dealer or dealer. The term “heating oil dealer” or “dealer” means a person that sells or offers to sell heating oil to consumers.
Heating oil deliverer or deliverer. The term “heating oil deliverer” or “deliverer” means a person that delivers or offers to deliver heating oil to consumers.                                          
Heating oil delivery vehicle or delivery vehicle. The term “heating oil delivery vehicle” or “delivery vehicle” means a vehicle that is used to deliver heating oil to consumers.                     
Licensee. The term “licensee” means an individual or business entity that holds a license issued by the commission pursuant to this chapter.
Operate. The term “operate” with respect to a delivery vehicle means to drive such vehicle or to operate or to assist in the operation of equipment used in the transfer of heating oil from the tank compartments of a delivery vehicle to the heating oil tank of a consumer. Such equipment includes, but is not limited to, the hose, meter, connection to consumer tank, air eliminator and fittings.
Operator. The term “operator” with respect to a delivery vehicle means the driver of such vehicle or an individual who accompanies the driver during deliveries and operates or assists in the operation of equipment used in the transfer of heating oil from the tank compartments of the delivery vehicle, including but not limited to, the hose, meter, connection to consumer tank, air eliminator or fittings, to the heating oil tank of a consumer.
Operator license. The term “operator license” means a license issued by the commission pursuant to this chapter to an individual who is an operator of a delivery vehicle.
Owner. The term “owner” with respect to a delivery vehicle or heating oil means a person having the property in or title to such vehicle or heating oil, including, but not limited to, a person entitled to use and possession of such vehicle or heating oil subject to a security interest in another person and also includes any lessee or bailee having exclusive use thereof, except that the term shall not include a person who is only a holder of a security interest in such vehicle or heating oil.
Person. The term “person” means an individual, partnership, corporation, limited liability company or other legal entity.
Predecessor heating oil business. The term “predecessor heating oil business” means any business engaged in the supply, transport or delivery of heating oil to which an applicant or licensee is a successor pursuant to subdivision b of section 20-1004 of this chapter.
Principal. The term “principal” means, with respect to a business entity, a person having a financial interest in or control of a business entity as specified in the rules of the commission, including, but not limited to, an officer, director or manager, partner or a stockholder owning stock directly or indirectly through a partnership, corporation or other business entity or through a spouse, child, grandchild, parent or other relative, as determined by the commission.
Shorting. The term “shorting” means the practice of stealing heating oil during a delivery to a consumer, including, but not limited to, by delivering less heating oil than the meter on the delivery vehicle shows as delivered. “Shorting” includes any practice where, based on a false delivery ticket or other record created to conceal a theft of heating oil, a consumer is billed for more heating oil than is actually delivered.
Terminal. The term “terminal” means a business entity that operates a facility where heating oil is received, stored and sold to dealers for re-sale to consumers or sold directly to consumers. A terminal that sells or delivers heating oil directly to consumers shall be subject to regulation pursuant to this chapter as a dealer and/or deliverer, as applicable.                     
§ 20-1001 General. a. The commission shall regulate individuals and businesses supplying heating oil for use within the city in accordance with this chapter and chapter 63 of the charter and rules promulgated by the commission pursuant thereto.
b. The commission shall promulgate rules to carry out the provisions of this chapter and chapter 63 of the charter and to establish standards for service and for the regulation and conduct of individuals and businesses licensed pursuant to this chapter, including, but not limited to, requirements governing the level of service to be provided by licensees, contracts for the transport and delivery of heating oil, billing form and procedures, the maintenance, filing and inspection of records, the inspection of delivery vehicles, the maintenance of appropriate insurance and compliance with environmental, safety and health measures. The commission may by rule delegate such rulemaking authority, including the authority to promulgate final rules to carry out the provisions of this chapter, to the chair of the commission.
c. In carrying out its powers and duties pursuant to this chapter and chapter 63 of the charter, the commission may exercise the powers delegated to any other city agency under any other provision of law or rule relating to the regulation of the supply of heating oil in the city and shall have the same authority as such agency to administer and enforce such law or rule.
d. The commission may enter into agreements with agencies responsible for compliance with local laws relating to climate change, the reduction of greenhouse gases and energy efficiency to share information submitted to the commission by licensees regarding the delivery of heating oil to consumers.
e. Nothing in this chapter shall be construed to limit, abridge, affect or amend the power of the department of consumer affairs, the department of environmental protection or any other agency.
§ 20-1002 License and vehicle registration required. a. It shall be unlawful for a person to engage in business as a heating oil deliverer or heating oil dealer without a license issued by the commission pursuant to this chapter. A terminal that engages in business as a deliverer or dealer must obtain a dealer and/or deliverer license, as applicable.
b. It shall be unlawful for a dealer to use a deliverer for deliveries of heating oil to consumers unless such deliverer is licensed by the commission pursuant to this chapter.
c. It shall be unlawful for a deliverer to deliver heating oil to consumers who purchase heating oil from a dealer unless such dealer is licensed by the commission pursuant to this chapter.
d. Except as otherwise permitted by the commission pursuant to subdivision e of section 20-1015, it shall be unlawful for an individual to operate a delivery vehicle without a license issued by the commission pursuant to this chapter.                     
e. Except as otherwise permitted by the commission pursuant to subdivision e of section 20-1015, it shall be unlawful for an individual to act as a dispatcher without a license issued by the commission pursuant to this chapter.
f. Except as otherwise permitted by the commission pursuant to subdivision e of section 20-1015, it shall be unlawful for a person engaged in business as a heating oil dealer, heating oil deliverer or terminal to employ or engage the services of an operator for a delivery vehicle who does not have an operator license or to employ or engage the services of a dispatcher who does not have a dispatcher license.
g. It shall be unlawful for a person to sell or deliver or offer to sell or deliver or to hold itself out to the public as authorized to sell or deliver heating oil to consumers without the applicable license issued by the commission pursuant to this chapter.
h. It shall be unlawful to operate or use a delivery vehicle unless such vehicle is registered with the commission pursuant to this chapter.
i. It shall be unlawful to physically alter a delivery vehicle or the equipment of a delivery vehicle to engage in the practice of shorting.
j. It shall be unlawful to operate a delivery vehicle or the equipment of a delivery vehicle that has been physically altered to engage in the practice of shorting when the operator knew or should have known that the delivery vehicle or equipment of a delivery vehicle has been altered to engage in the practice of shorting.
k. It shall be unlawful to engage in a fraudulent business practice as defined in section 20-1000 of this chapter and the rules of the commission.
l. A license issued pursuant to this chapter or any rule promulgated hereunder is not transferrable or assignable and may not be used by any person other than the licensee. A license that is used, transferred or assigned in violation of this subdivision shall expire by operation of law as of the date of such unlawful transfer, assignment or use.
§ 20-1003 Term of license and fees. a. The term of a license issued pursuant to this chapter and of renewal of such license shall be as set forth in the rules of the commission.
b. The commission shall promulgate rules establishing fees for licenses, the renewal of licenses, registration and inspection of delivery vehicles, and to reimburse the city for the expense of fingerprinting and background investigations required by this chapter.
§ 20-1004 License application. a. An applicant for a license shall submit an application in the form and containing the information prescribed by the commission. Such information may include information regarding any predecessor heating oil business to which the applicant is a successor or any affiliate or subsidiary of the applicant that owns or operates a business in any jurisdiction. The commission may require that applications and other information and/or documentation required by the commission pursuant to this chapter or the rules of the commission be submitted electronically.
b. For purposes of this chapter, an applicant shall be considered a successor to a predecessor heating oil business upon a finding by the commission, in its sole discretion, that such applicant satisfies two or more of the following criteria:
1. The applicant uses the same facility, facilities or workforce to offer substantially the same services as the predecessor heating oil business;
2. The applicant shared in the ownership, or otherwise exercised control over the management of the predecessor heating oil business;
3. The applicant employs in a managerial capacity any person who controlled the wages, hours, or working conditions of the affected employees of the predecessor heating oil business; or
4. The applicant is an immediate family member, including a parent, step-parent, child, or step-child, foster or adopted child, of any owner, partner, officer, or director of the predecessor heating oil business, or of any person who had a financial interest in the predecessor heating oil business.
c. Fingerprinting. An applicant for a license issued pursuant to this chapter shall submit fingerprints of the individuals described in subdivision d of this section. Such fingerprinting must be performed by a person designated by the commission for such purpose.
d. Required individuals for disclosure and fingerprinting. 1. The applicant shall be required to provide information required by the commission pursuant to subdivision a of this section and to provide fingerprints as required pursuant to subdivision c of this section with respect to the following individuals:
(a) All principals of the applicant as defined in the rules of the commission;
(b) If the applicant is a regional subsidiary of or otherwise owned, managed by or an affiliate of a business that has national or international operations, the commission may by rule provide for additional disclosure relating to principals of such national or international entity;
(c) Any individual employed by the applicant in a job category specified in the rules of the commission; and
(d) Any other individual specified in the rules of the commission.
2. Where, at any time subsequent to an investigation of a person subject to the provisions of this section, the commission has reasonable cause to believe that such employee lacks good character, honesty and integrity, the commission may conduct an additional investigation of such person and may require, if necessary, that such person provide information updating, supplementing or explaining information previously submitted. Such information may, at the discretion of the commission or its staff, be in the form of sworn testimony.
§ 20-1005 Refusal to issue a license. The commission may, by majority vote of its entire membership and after notice and the opportunity to be heard, refuse to issue a license to an applicant who lacks good character, honesty and integrity. Such notice shall specify the reasons for such refusal. In making such determination, the commission may consider, but is not limited to, considering:
a. Failure of such applicant to provide any information and/or documentation required by the commission pursuant to this chapter or any rules promulgated pursuant hereto;
b. Failure of such applicant to provide truthful information to the commission in connection with the application or in relation to any investigation by the commission;
c. A pending indictment or criminal action against such applicant for a crime or a pending civil or administrative action to which such applicant is a party and which directly relates to the fitness to conduct the business or perform the work for which the license is sought, in which case the commission may defer consideration of an application until a decision has been reached by the court or administrative tribunal before which such action is pending;
d. Conviction of such applicant of a crime or a finding of liability in a civil or administrative action that bears a direct relationship to the fitness of the applicant to conduct the business for which the license is sought;
e. Commission of a racketeering activity, as such term is defined in subdivision one of section 1961 of title 18 of the United States Code or of any offense listed in subdivision one of section 460.10 of the penal law, or the equivalent offense under the laws of any other jurisdiction;
f. having been a principal in a predecessor heating oil business to which the applicant is a successor where the commission would be authorized to deny a license to such predecessor business pursuant to this section;
g. Failure to pay any tax, fine, penalty, or fee related to the applicant’s business for which liability has been admitted by the person or business liable therefore, or for which judgment has been entered by a court or administrative tribunal of competent jurisdiction;
h. For any business entity required to register as a distributor with the department of taxation and finance pursuant to article 12-A of the tax law, cancellation of the registration of such business entity by such department in accordance with subdivision four of section 283 of the tax law; and
i. For any individual required to be licensed who is also required to hold a valid transportation worker identification credential (“TWIC”) issued by the transportation security administration (“TSA”), refusal of TSA to issue such TWIC, or revocation or suspension by TSA of such TWIC, or surrender of such TWIC.
§ 20-1006 Duty to inform the commission of change in application; investigation of employees. a. An applicant or licensee shall, in accordance with rules promulgated by the commission, provide the commission with notice of the following, no later than 10 business days after the occurrence of such event or events:
1. All changes in the ownership composition of the business;
2. The addition or removal of any principal or any individual listed in paragraph one of subdivision d of section 20-1004 at any time subsequent to the submission of the application or issuance of the license;
3. The arrest or criminal conviction of any principal of the business or any individual listed in paragraph one of subdivision d of section 20-1004; or
4. Any other material change in the information submitted on the application for a license, as that term is defined by rule of the commission or in the application.
b. Where the commission has reasonable cause to believe that an employee or agent of a licensee or an applicant for a license not otherwise subject to the fingerprinting requirements of this chapter lacks good character, honesty and integrity, the commission shall notify such employee or agent that he or she shall be required to be fingerprinted and submit the information required by the commission.
c. Following a background investigation conducted pursuant to this section, the commission may by majority vote of its entire membership, and after notice and opportunity to be heard, find that a principal, employee or agent of a licensee lacks good character, honesty and integrity. Such notice shall specify the reasons for such a determination. In making such determination, the commission may consider, but is not limited to considering, the factors specified in section 20-1005 of this chapter.
d. A licensee shall not employ or engage as an agent any person with respect to whom the commission has made a final determination, following a background investigation conducted pursuant to this section, that such person lacks good character, honesty and integrity.
§ 20-1007 Independent monitoring required. a. The commission may, in the event that the background investigation conducted pursuant to this chapter produces adverse or derogatory information, require as a condition of a license that the licensee enter into a contract with an independent monitor approved or selected by the commission. Such contract, the cost of the services of such monitor, and all related costs, shall be paid by the licensee. Such contract shall provide that the monitor investigate the activities, as applicable, of the licensee with respect to the licensee’s compliance with the provisions of this chapter, other applicable federal, state and local laws and such other matters as the commission shall determine by rule. The contract shall provide further that the monitor report the findings of such monitoring and investigation to the commission on a periodic basis.
b. The commission shall be authorized to prescribe in any contract required by the commission pursuant to this section such reasonable terms and conditions as the commission deems necessary to effectuate the purposes hereof.
§ 20-1008 Revocation or suspension of license. In addition to the penalties provided in section 20-1010 of this chapter, the commission, after notice and opportunity to be heard, may revoke or suspend a license issued pursuant to this chapter whenever:
a. The licensee or any of its principals, employees or agents has been found to be in violation of this chapter or any rules promulgated pursuant thereto;
b. The licensee or any of its principals, employees or agents has been found by a court or administrative tribunal of competent jurisdiction to have violated:
1. Any law or rule relating to meter tampering; or
2. Any law or rule relating to overcharging for the delivery of heating oil, shorting, or otherwise engaging in a fraudulent business practice;
c. The licensee or any of its principals, employees or agents has repeatedly failed to obey lawful orders of any person authorized to enforce the provisions hereof;
d. The licensee or any of its principals, employees or agents has failed to pay, within the time specified by a court, the office of administrative trials and hearings or an administrative tribunal of competent jurisdiction, all fines or civil penalties imposed pursuant to this chapter or the rules promulgated pursuant thereto;
e. The licensee or any of its principals, employees or agents has been found to be in persistent or substantial violation of any city, state or federal law, rule or regulation regarding the transport or delivery of heating oil;
f. In relation to an investigation conducted pursuant to this chapter, the commission determines, after consideration of the factors set forth in section 20-1005 of this chapter, that the licensee lacks good character, honesty and integrity;
g. There has been any false statement or any misrepresentation as to a material fact in the application or accompanying papers upon which the issuance of such license was based;
h. The licensee has failed to notify the commission of any change in the ownership interest of the business or other material change in the information required on the application for such license, or of the arrest or criminal conviction of such licensee or any of its principals, employees, or agents of which the licensee had knowledge or should have had knowledge; or
i. For any business entity required to register as a distributor with the department of taxation and finance pursuant to article 12-A of the tax law, cancellation of the registration of such business entity by such department in accordance with subdivision four of section 283 of the tax law.
§ 20-1009 Emergency suspension of license. Notwithstanding any inconsistent provision of section 20-1008, the commission may, upon a finding that the operation of the business of a licensee or the transport or delivery of heating oil by a business required by this chapter to be licensed creates an imminent danger to life or property, immediately suspend such license without prior notice. The commissioner shall forthwith notify the licensee of such suspension and the reasons for such suspension, that the license is proposed to be revoked, that the licensee has the right to request a hearing within 14 days of the date of such notice and that a hearing will be provided within 5 business days of the date of such request.
§ 20-1010 Penalties. a. Except as otherwise provided in subdivision b of this section, any person who violates any provision of this chapter or any of the rules promulgated pursuant to this chapter shall be liable for a civil penalty of not more than $10,000 for each violation. Such civil penalty may be recovered in a civil action in any court of competent jurisdiction or in a proceeding before an administrative tribunal within the jurisdiction of the office of administrative trials and hearings.
b. Any person who violates any of the provisions of section 20-1002 of this chapter or any of the rules promulgated pursuant thereto shall upon conviction thereof be punished by a criminal fine of not more than $10,000 for each day of such violation or by imprisonment not exceeding six months or both such criminal fine and imprisonment. In addition to or as an alternative to such criminal fine and imprisonment, such person shall be liable for a civil penalty of not more than $10,000 for each day of such violation, which may be recovered in a civil action in any court of competent jurisdiction or in a proceeding before an administrative tribunal within the jurisdiction of the office of administrative trials and hearings.
§ 20-1011 Impoundment and forfeiture. a. Any delivery vehicle that has been used or is being used in violation of section 20-1002 may be impounded by the commission. Except as otherwise provided in subdivisions b and c of this section, such vehicle shall be released upon payment of removal charges and storage fees and the applicable fine or civil penalty or posting of a bond in an amount satisfactory to the commission.
b. 1. In addition to any other penalties provided in this chapter, the interest of an owner of a delivery vehicle that has been impounded pursuant to subdivision a of this section or of any heating oil contained in such a vehicle shall be subject to forfeiture upon notice and judicial determination thereof if such vehicle is found to contain stolen heating oil or such vehicle or its equipment is found to have been physically altered to engage in the practice of shorting or other fraudulent business practice.
2.Except as hereinafter provided, the city agency having custody of a delivery vehicle, after judicial determination of forfeiture, shall no sooner than 30 days after such determination upon notice of at least 5 days, sell such forfeited vehicle and/or heating oil at public sale. Any person, other than an owner whose interest is forfeited pursuant to this section, who establishes a right of ownership in a vehicle or heating oil, including a part ownership or security interest, shall be entitled to delivery of the vehicle or heating oil if such person:
(a) Redeems the ownership interest which was subject to forfeiture by payment to the city of the value thereof;
(b)Pays the reasonable expenses of the safekeeping of the vehicle between the time of seizure and such redemption; and
(c) Asserts a claim within 30 days after judicial determination of forfeiture.
3. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions, establishment of a claim shall not entitle such person to delivery of the vehicle or heating oil if the city establishes that the unlawful use for which the vehicle was impounded was expressly or impliedly permitted by such person.
c. The commission shall promulgate rules concerning the impoundment, forfeiture and release of delivery vehicles and the payment of removal charges and storage fees for such vehicles, including the amounts and rates thereof, the procedure for disposal of unclaimed vehicles, and procedures for innocent owners to file claims. Such rules shall provide for notice to the registered owner of the vehicle and the opportunity for a hearing before the office of administrative trials and hearings to determine whether there was reasonable cause to believe that such vehicle should be impounded and/or, where applicable, subject to forfeiture. A hearing shall be provided within three business days of such request. Within four business days of the conclusion of such hearing, the hearing officer shall submit recommended findings of fact and a recommended decision to the commission, which shall make the final findings of fact and the final determination within four business days of such recommendation. If the commission determines that there is not reasonable cause to believe that such vehicle should be subject to forfeiture, the commission shall release such vehicle and no charges or fees shall be imposed as a condition of such release. If the commission determines that there is reasonable cause to believe that such vehicle should be subject to forfeiture, the commission may retain such vehicle pending forfeiture pursuant to the provisions of this section.
§ 20-1012 Liability for violations by employees. A business required by this chapter to be licensed shall be liable for violations of any of the provisions of this chapter or any rules promulgated pursuant hereto committed by any of its employees or agents.
§ 20-1013 Enforcement. a. In addition to police officers and employees and agents of the commission, notices of violation and appearance tickets for violation of any provision of this chapter or any rule promulgated hereunder may be issued by authorized employees and agents of other agencies of the city designated by the commission.
b. With respect to any notice of violation or order of the commission alleging the unlicensed operation of a business regulated by this chapter, the operator of a delivery vehicle engaged in delivering or transporting heating oil in violation of this chapter shall be deemed to be the agent of the business entity employing such operator or on whose behalf such operator is acting and service of such notice of violation or order on such operator shall be deemed to be lawful service upon such business entity.
§ 20-1014 Hearings. Except as otherwise specified, the commission may provide by rule that hearings or specified categories of hearings pursuant to this chapter may be conducted by the office of administrative trials and hearings and may provide that such office shall make the final decision or determination with respect to the matter.
§ 20-1015 Conduct. a. All licensed dealers and deliverers shall maintain audited financial statements, records, ledgers, receipts, bills and such other written or electronic records as the commission determines are necessary for carrying out the purposes of this chapter. Such records shall be maintained for a period of time not to exceed five years to be determined by rule of the commission, except that such rule may provide that the commission may in specific instances at its discretion require that records be retained for a period of time exceeding five years. Such records shall be made available for inspection and audit by the commission, in accordance with applicable law, at either the licensee’s place of business or at the offices of the commission.
b. A licensee shall be in compliance at all times with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations and orders of the commission pertaining to the transport and delivery of heating oil.
c. A licensee or applicant shall comply with any rule or order by the commission requiring the inspection of a delivery vehicle.
d. A licensed dealer or deliverer shall bill consumers for the delivery of heating oil in a form and manner to be prescribed by the commission.
e. 1. A licensed dealer or deliverer shall not employ an individual required to be licensed pursuant to the provisions of this chapter unless such person has obtained such license, except that the commission shall, by rule, make provision for temporary permission for employment of an unlicensed individual pending completion by the commission of review of an application for a license where the employment of such individual is necessary for the operation of the licensed business.
2. The commission may, upon the request of a licensee, make available the names of applicants for employment who have been approved for licenses.
§ 20-1016 Investigation of complaints. The commission shall by rule establish a procedure for the investigation and resolution of complaints regarding overcharging and other problems relating to the delivery of heating oil.
§ 20-1017 Protection of criminal history. Nothing in this chapter shall be construed to supersede, alter or amend subdivision nine of section 8-107 of the administrative code.
                     § 3. This local law takes effect 180 days after it becomes law, except that the commission may adopt rules and take other measures as it deems necessary for the implementation of this local law prior to such effective date, including, but not limited to, rules providing for the continued operation of an existing business and/or the continued employment of a person who would otherwise be required to have a license on such effective date, where an application for such license is submitted to the commission by a date and in accordance with such conditions as are specified in such rules.
JCH
LS 6751
8/12/16
� See Benjamin Miller, Prosecutors Allege Persistent Heating Oil Fraud in New York City, New York Times, Nov. 10, 2015.
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